
 1 

FACULTY OF ARTS AND SCIENCE 
FACULTY BOARD 

A meeting of Faculty Board will be held on Friday, January 24, 2025, at 2:30 p.m.  
Kinesiology and Health Studies Building Room 100  

Hybrid with Zoom link  
https://queensu.zoom.us/j/99758657092?pwd=TXB2S2F2aU8rM2pDeFBYT0cya1g2UT09  

Meeting ID: 997 5865 7092 
Passcode: 388880  

 
 

AGENDA 

     
 

2. Tribute 
• Marie Surridge, Department of French Studies (By J. Bénard) 

 
3. Chair’s Remarks 

 
4. Adoption of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  

• The minutes from 

!(7!9;9

https://queensu.zoom.us/j/99758657092?pwd=TXB2S2F2aU8rM2pDeFBYT0cya1g2UT09
https://queensu.zoom.us/j/99758657092?pwd=TXB2S2F2aU8rM2pDeFBYT0cya1g2UT09


 2 

11. Notice of Motion regarding New Visual Arts Program (Major and Minor) - 
[Appendix C] - for information only 

• J. Brook, S. MacKenzie and N. Vorano will present a Notice of Motion “That 
Faculty Board approve the new Visual Arts Program (Major and Minor)”. 

 
12. Report of the Procedures Committee - [Appendix D including attached “A Short 

History - Faculty of Arts and Science’s Faculty Board, 1913 – 2024, by Rebecca 
Coupland, Queen’s University Secretariat] - for approval 

• Continued discussion of the postponed amendment “that Faculty Board approve 
the addition of Appendix 1, which explains the Faculty of Arts and Science’s 
Faculty Board functions, to the Faculty of Arts and Science By-Laws as 
recommended by the Procedures Committee.”  Member Rose has provided “A 
Short History - Faculty of Arts and Science’s Faculty Board, 1913 – 2024, by 
Rebecca Coupland, Queen’s University Secretariat [Appendix D] to facilitate 
discussion. 
 

13. Question Period  

14. Other Business 

15. Adjournment 

 

 

L. Winn, Board Secretary           P. Pufahl, Chair  
       

  

  

  



 
 

 
 

January 24, 2024 

Dean’s Report 
*additional information presented by the Dean at Faculty Board 

The following report includes the most recent news and kudos since our last Faculty Board meeting. 

Arts and Science News and Kudos 

• Faculty of Arts and Science researcher Kristen Lowitt (School of Environmental Studies) has 
received funding from the Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council (SSHRC) to hire a 
community researcher and a research assistant to help develop a comprehensive food strategy 
for the Kingston, Frontenac, Lennox and Addington (KFL&A) area. The project is being undertaken 
in partnership with the KFL&A Food Policy Council (FPC). Read the story: 
https://www.queensu.ca/artsci/news/focusing-on-food-security-in-kflanda 
 

• 

/artsci/news/focusing-on-food-security-in-kflanda
/artsci/news/advancing-reconciliation-in-higher-education
/artsci/news/impressive-career-hit-all-the-right-notes
/artsci/news/finding-success-far-from-home


Appendix A 

 

FAS Nominating Committee Report 

24 January 2025 

Senate



Regulation Change: 

 

 

Modifying the minimum number of units required for the 
Major, Minor, and Specialization for the Bachelor of Arts 
(Honours), Bachelor of Computing (Honours) and the 
Bachelor of Science (Honours) and the Specialization for 

Louise Winn
Appendix B



 

 

 



Academic Calendar reference: 
 Academic Calendar https://www.queensu.ca/academic-calendar/arts-
science/academic-programs/) 

Academic Programs  

By the Royal Charter granted to Queen’s College on 16 October 1841, it is “willed, 
ordained, and granted that the said College shall be deemed and taken to be a University, 
and that the students in the said College shall have the liberty and faculty of taking the 
degree of Bachelor, Master, and Doctor in the several Arts Faculties.” The degrees and 
certificates at present conferred through the Faculty of Arts and Science are outlined 
below. 

Students admi,ed to the Faculty of Arts and Science in the Fall Term 2024 are governed by the 
academic regula=ons and program requirements, outlined below.  !"#$%&"'()#'"(&*+),--.(
',"/'0.("1%(2+*3+,)(,&$(2-,&(+%4#/+%)%&"'(/&(%5%6"(,"("1%("/)%(*0(2-,&(!%-%6"/*&(*+(
,$)/''/*&(0*+(2-,&'("1,"(,+%($/+%6"(%&"+.7((!"#$%&"'()#'"(8%(%&+*--%$(/&("1%(2-,&($#+/&3("1,"(
,6,$%)/6(.%,+("*(8%(%-/3/8-%("*(0*--*9("1%(+%4#/+%)%&"'(*0("1,"(%$/"/*&(*0("1%(:6,$%)/6(
;,-%&$,+7!
!

"#!$%&'%%!(')&'*+,!-.!/'0,!*.1!23-%.3%!

•  To preserve sufficient alternatives for future study, students on a degree 
program are required to take, within the first 30.0 units in which they register, 
18.0 units numbered 100 or above in three different subjects.   

• Not all plan types may be offered in all programs. Consult program regulations 
for individual program requirements. 

• The following Programs will lead to a degree in the Faculty of Arts and Science: 

*#!4*35%6)'!)7!/'0,!89).):',;!<=4/9>!
To consist of the following Plan types plus additional elective units to total 120.0 units (0*+(
'"#$%&"'(,$)/""%$("*("1%(<,6#-".(*0(:+"'(,&$(!6/%&6%(/&("1%(<,--(=%+)(>?@A(,&$(-,"%+): 
 
i. Major (Arts): Consists of a minimum of 48.0 core and option units: 6.0 units at the 100 
level or above, 12.0 units at the 200 level or above, 12.0 units at the 300 level or above, and 
the remaining units at any level. Students completing a 48.0 unit Major must also complete 
a Minor plan in a second subject. Please refer to the Minor plan requirements for further 
details.  Students completing a Major plan consisting of more than 48.0 core and option 
units are not required to complete a Minor plan in a second subject. 
 



ii.  Double Major (Arts): Consists of two Major (Arts) Plans in 



i. General (Computing): Consists of 48.0 core and option units and: 6.0 units at the 100 
level, 12.0 units at the 200 level, and the remaining units at any level. 
 
%#!4*35%6)'!)7!B-.%!/'0!89).):',;!<=4B9>!
:$)/''/*&("*("1/'(2+*3+,)



i. General



b) Supporting and Additional Required Courses



Notice of Motion 
January 2025 – Faculty Board Meeting 

The following academic units are proposing the introduction of a new Program, which 
will be submitted to the relevant review committee for approval. It is intended that this 
new program will be available for admission in September 2026, as indicated in the 
proposal. 

Department of Art History and Art Conservation 
Department of Film and Media 
Dan School of Drama and Music  

 � New – Visual Arts – Major (Arts) – Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
 � New – Visual Arts – Minor (Arts)

Louise Winn
Appendix C



 !! 25 !

.//#<'%^!:\!
!
Faculty of Arts and Science’s Faculty Board Functions Explained 
 
N=#!@)7348*!1F!.08H!)<'!E7%#<7#TH!@)7348*!A1)0'TH!F3<78%1<H!&#0#!F%0H8!0#710'#'!%<!:g:>K!&=#<!%8H!
#H8)94%H=;#<8! &)H! )//01$#'! 9*! a3##<TH! A1)0'! 1F! N03H8##HC! ! .48=13M=! 8=#! @)7348*! A1)0'TH!
F3<78%1<H!=)$#!9##<!0#$%H#'!H%<7#!8=)8!8%;#K!;37=!1F!8=#!10%M%<)4!4)<M3)M#!=)H!<18!7=)<M#'C!!A#41&!
%H!#)7=!1F!8=#!7300#<8!F3<78%1<H!&%8=!)!90%#F!#^/4)<)8%1<!1F!8=#%0!;#)<%<MC!
!
A)!

https://queensu-ca-public.courseleaf.com/arts-science/
https://queensu-ca-public.courseleaf.com/arts-science/
Louise Winn
Appendix D



 !! 26 !

The language of this function is the same as that approved in 1913.  It refers to the rationale 
for establishing Faculty Board, which was to enable Queen’s to run more efficiently by 
assigning work previously done by the Senate to the Faculty Board so that the Senate could 
focus on university-wide matters.  Faculty Board continues to be able to recommend 
changes to the work it has the authority to conduct for review and approval by the Queen’s 
Board of Trustees. 

!
H)!N1!/)HH!H37=!0#M34)8%1<H!)<'!9*I4)&H!)H!;)*!9#!<#7#HH)0*!F10!8=#!#^#07%H#!1F!8=#!F3<78%1<H!1F!
8=#!@)7348*C!
! Faculty Board has the authority to adjust its by-laws and regulations so that it can fulfill 

its functions, as long as the adjustments do not change its current powers, which can only 
be changed by Queen’s Board of Trustees. 

!



!"
"

A Short History - Faculty of Arts and Science’s Faculty Board, 1913 – 2024 
Rebecca Coupland, Queen’s University Secretariat 

The Faculty of Arts and Science’s Faculty Board was created in 1913, when the university’s Board of 
Trustees approved a proposal for its establishment.  The proposal was brought to the Board by the 
Principal as part of a plan of “academic reorganization”, given that the university had continued to 
operate similarly to the way it had when it was established in 1842, despite significant growth. 

From 1842 to 1913, the Senate dealt with all matters related to curriculum and the content of all 
courses, conducted oral exams, awarded prizes, decided on disciplinary sanctions for individual 
students, approved or declined every request for a course change or substitution, decided on all 
requests related to admission, and confirmed that degree requirements were met for all students 
before allowing them to graduate, among other tasks. 

As the university grew, the Senate’s workload increased substantially.  It formed some committees 
to deal with specific items, but its work was still more than was manageable.  Once the work 
associated with Queen’s separation from the Presbyterian Church was concluded in 1912, the 
Principal developed the 1913 reorganization proposal, which the Board approved.  (Per the Royal 
Charter, the Board of Trustees has the power to create and amend statues on the “good 
government of the said College” 





$"
"



%"
"

Faculty Board Functions - 1917  
(per Faculty of Arts calendar





'"
"

Faculty Board Functions - 1931  
(per Faculty of Arts calendar, no associated documentation in Board minutes of 1930 or 1931, or 
Faculty Board minutes of 1930 or 1931) 

“For the Faculty of Arts and the Faculty of Applied Science, the Dean, Professors, Associate Professors, 



("
"

Faculty Board Functions – 1963



)"
"

Associate Professors, Assistant Professors and Lecturers in charge of courses that are required 



*"
"

Faculty Board Functions – 1966 (per Faculty of Arts calendar, approval in 1966 Board minutes) 

“For the Faculty of Arts, for the Faculty of Applied Science, and for the Faculty of Law, the Dean, 
Professors, Associate Professors, Assistant Professors, and Lecturers have the power to meet as 
separate boards, and to administer the affairs of the Faculty under such regulations as the Board of 
Trustees may prescribe.  The University Librarian is a member of the Faculty of Arts and Science. 

For the Faculty of Medicine, the Dean, Professors, Associate Professors, and Assistant Professors have 
the power to meet as a separate board, and to administer the affairs of the Faculty under such 
regulations as the Board of Trustees may prescribe. 

The principal is an ex-officio member of each of the Faculty Boards.   

The functions of the Faculty Boards are: 

1. “To recommend to Senate courses of study leading to a 



!+"
"

Faculty Board Functions – 1967 (per Faculty of Arts calendar) 

“For the Faculty of Arts, for the Faculty of Applied Science, and for the Faculty of Law, the Dean, 
Professors, Associate Professors, Assistant Professors, and Lecturers have the power to meet as 
separate boards, and to administer the affairs of each Faculty under such regulations as the Board of 
Trustees may prescribe.  The University Librarian is a member of the Faculty of Arts and Science. 

For the Faculty of Medicine, the Dean, Professors, Associate Professors, and Assistant Professors have 
the power to meet as a separate board, and to administer the affairs of the Faculty under such 



!!



!#"
"

Faculty Board Functions – 1967 to 2023 

i. Academic Calendars 


